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Chas. DeNoyer.

Fort Totten, Dakota Territory, was established by General A. H. Terry, July 17%,

1867. It was one of a series of pests built for the protection of an overland route
extending from southern Minnesota into western Montana. The other forts in the series
were Abercrombie, Ransom, Stevenson, Buford, Camp Cooke at the mouth of the Judith
river in Montana and Benton.

Barly in the summer of 1867, with a comsiderable force, General Terry advanced into
the Devils Lake region. He had with his command Pierre Bottineau, a French scout, who
acted as guide to the expedition. Leaving & detachment on the south shore of Devils
Lake, Ceneral Terry proceeded to Fort Stevenson, where he took command of companies A,
Dy and K of the Thirty-first Infantry, they having arrived at that post by way of the
Missouri river a short time previously. W¥ith these troops General Terry returned to
the south shore of Devils lake, and immediately began the construction of a temporary
fort. The fort was named Totten in honor of Bpevet Major General Joseph Gilbert Totten,
late chief engineer of the United States army. The spot selected for the fort was
located within the Devils lLake Indien regervation, on the south side of within the Devils
Leke Indian reservation, on the south side of Devils Lake and about nine hundred feet
from the shore. Its height above the level of the lake is about forty feet; its height
above sea level is fourteen hundred and eighty feet. It is located in north lattitude
47° 58% 50" and in west longitude 98° s4t, It is eighty-one miles from Jamestown, and
one hundred thirty-eight miles from Pembina and three hundred ninety-six miles from
St. Paul, Minn.

The region around Fort Totten is rolling and hilly. The hills near the lake are cut
with deep ravines covered with timber and underbrush., At the time the fort was built
the shores of the leke in the immediate vicinity were skirted with dense groves of ash,
elm and oak. Machinery for a sawmill had been brought from Fort Stevenson and the rude
log structures of the temporary fort were soon well under process of comstruction. Be-
fore the cold weather had set im, the troops were fairly comfortable in their new winter
quarters. The buildings inclosed a space about fowr hundred feet square which was used
as a parade ground. Standing about twenty feet back from the north side of the fort
was & stockade built of oak logs, from about twelve to eighteen inches in thickness, and
eighteon feet high., On the scuth side of the fort, between the magazine and the black-
smith shop was the sally port or entrance gate, made of hoavy four-inch planks.

The first military force at Fort Totien consisted of companies a A D and K of the
Thiry-first Infantry, and the first post commander was captain S. A. Wainwright. His
command lasted from July 172, 1867, the date of the establishment of the fort, until
December 26%, 1867, when he was succeeded in command by Major J. Ne Ge. whistlers In
the same swmmer that Fort Totten was built, Charles A. Ruffee of Minneapolis secured a
government contract for a pony express between Fort Abercrombie on the Red river and
Fort Bemton, Montana. This proposed mail route ran from Fort ibercrombie to Fort Ransom,
thence up the Sheyenne river and across to Fort Totten, west from that post by way of
the big bend of the Mouse river to Fort Buford, thence along the Missouri river to Fort
peck, from Fort Peck up the Milk river to Boulder creek, and thence in a direct line to
Fort Benton. It was thought that this would become a permanent overl route as it
would be sufficiently protected by the forts embraced in its length. The mail company
of whieh Mr. Ruffee was the head, had plamnned to establish camps or s ations at intervals
of fifty miles along the route. Two men were to be gtationed at each camp, whose duty
it would be to carry the mail bage to and from the neighborings stations. It was thought
that the mail could be got through three times a week, but the plan proved entirely ime
practical and failed almost entirely. The stations could not be maintained. The men
either deserted or were killed by the Indiams. The mail company never succeeded in gete
ting the mail carried farther than Fort Totten, and when it failed fipancially in the
winter of 1867-68, the commanding officer at
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each fort was given charge of the mail service between his and neighboring posts.

During the winter of 1867-68, the mail for Fort Totten was ¢arried at rather irreg-
ular intervals from Fort Abercrombie by way of Fort Ransom. The mail carrier was Mr.
Thomas Crayon. On March lat, 1868, Frank Palmer arrived at Fort Totten from Fort Peck,
Montana. He had been employed during the previous summer by Charles Ruffee to take
charge of the mail route between Fort Buford and Fort Benton. But as the mail company
never succeeded in getting the mail through to Fort Buford, the eastern terminus of that
part of the line under charge of Mr, Palmer, he had grown doubtful of its success and
made this trip to Fort Totten for the purpose of inve#tigating the matter. This long
trip to Fort Totten for the purpose of investigating the matter. This long trip of over
three hundred miles Mr., Palmer made with a sleigh and four dogs. Arriving at Fort
Totten and learning of the failure of the mail company, he found himself out of employ=-
ment, and gladly accepted the position of post guide, with headquarters at Fort Totten,
from the military department. From this time on during the next several years the mail
was carried from Fort Totten to Fort Stevenson once a week, but no attempt was now made
to maintain stations along the way. Two men carried the mail over the entire route be-
tween the two forts, but there were some irregularities in this practice, for the hosti-
lity of the Indians did not permit of any uniform rule of procedure,

On May 15%, 1868, two mail carriers were killed by & band of Sioux between Fort Totten
and Fort Stevenson. The names of these two men were McDonald and Rolette, the latter a
half breed who @ccompanied the mail carrier. They were killed in the #icinity of Strave
berry Leke, in what is now McLean county. Mr. Palmer had received the mail bag from
McDonald the day before he was killed, and they had camped that night together. The
next morning MeDonald started back for Stevenson and, encountering the band of Sioux,
he was murdered by them. That might Mr, Palmer camped with a man named Coon who was
traveling scross from Fort Tolten to Fort Stevenson with a yoke of oxen and a wagon.
Coon rose early the next morning and proceeding on his way, he encountered the same fate
as McDonald. FPalmer was in easy distance of Fort Totten and arrived there by noon.
Shortly after his arrival, the band of Sioux rode up near the fort and attempted to
gstampede the garrison herd. The garrison mules were grazing about half a mile west of the
fort where a single mounted soldier was watching them. Suddenly the Indians, twelve of
fifteen in number, appeared over the rising round to the northwest, near where the lMission
School now stands. They were very close to the herdsman before he was aware of their
approach. They quickly surrounded the herd, and with loud yells and much flapping of
their blankets, they tried to staupede the mules in a westerly direction, Some of them
rode up and tried to push the herdsman from his horse. He did not immedi.tely recognize
the Indians as hostile, but took them for some of those on the reservation, and thought
the attack a mere frolic on their part. while he was coming to a realization of the
true sitvation, a curious thing was happening. The mules stampeded, but they stampeded
in a woy unfortunate for the Indians., They headed straight for the corral, and in spite
of all the savages could do they held steadfastly to their course. The Indians persisted
in trying to head them off in the opposite direction, and thus swept up until they were
scarcely more than a hundred yards from the post. By this time the garrison was aroused
and opened fire upon the Indians and thereupon they swerved off and took to flight. The
soldiers mounted such horses as were then in the corral and started in pursuit, but
the savages were too swift and could not be overtaken. when the Indians got out o few
miles west of the fort, they encountered a wagon train with military supplies from Fort
Stevenson. The commander, taking them for a band of friendly Indiams from the reservation,
called upon his men not to fire, and they rode past unhormed. Somewhat in the rear of
the train, however, was a single teamster who had stopped at the head of the bay to
water his mules. The Indians rode up, shot him in the face, and, thinking him dead, they
cut the tr.ces of his mules and escaped with them. The teamster, an old frontiersman
named Fluery, was brought into the fort, his wounds were dressed and he recovered. In
the meantime the detachment of troops from Fort Totten were pursuing the Indians who
had commitded these daring acts. The Indians were not overtaken, but their camp was

located on the banks of Long Lake, a small body of water about six miles northwest of
where the town of Oberon now stands., Farther south near the old trail to Stevenson,
they found the body of Coon, who had been recently murdered. The bodies of MeDonald
and Rolette, however, were never found. MoDonald was the husband of Mary, a daughter of



ARRETON: An inland post office of short duration was estab-

lished Aug. 14, 1901 with Pleasant O. Heald, postmaster; dis-
continued Oct. 18, 1901. Origin of name not known. (80)

BELMAR: A grain loading station on the G.N.R.R. in Willow
Vale Twp., at which a post office was established Dec. 28, 1906
with Walter J. McDougall, postmaster; discontinued May 31,
1909. Origin of name not known. (80)

BJELLAND: Settlement began in Lansford Twp. in 1900. A
postofﬁcewasestablhholﬂct&l,lﬂlinthehomeofﬂu
postmaster, Chris H. Knudson, on the NEVj Sec. 12, who gave
it the surname of his father Knute Bjelland. The post office
was discontinued Dec. 7, 1903. gl

(80; Bottineau County Diamond Jubilee Book, June, 1959)

BOTTINEAU: Early known as Oak Creek, the village marked
thepointwﬁeretheaugeroadcr«aadthecl*awllmihl
south of the Canadian boundary. A sub-port of entry for the
U. S. Customs Department was established here Sept. 19, 1883
with W. H. Kirk as sub collector. The first store and hotel in
which the post office was established March 3, 1884 were built
and operated by Augustine w From 1883-84, a stage
Devils Lake, 120 miles to the southeast. Soon after the cou
was organized, Mar. 13, 1884, and named for Pierre Bottineau, =
most noted voyageur, 4
_expeditions and railroad reconnoissances, the village of

Creek was renamed Bottineau for its county. Piefre Bottineau,
born about 1812, was probably the first white child born in '
our present state of North Dakota. The first settlers of this
vicinity were J. B. Sinclair, Alex McClay, Robert Brander and
Wm. Hulburt, who came in the summer of 1882. Brander entered
the land on which the principal part of the present town of
Bottineau is situated, the homestead of Sinclair also forming
a part of it. Originally Bottineau was established two miles
south of its present location, but moved to the '
1887 when the G.N.R.R. extended its line from Rugby.

(11, p. 208; 31, p. 235, 38, vol. 3, no. 2, p. 31; 39, vol. 14; 80)

CAMP GRANT: A sibley camp site six miles north of Wood-
ward, : by a small bronze tablet, named for Charles

Grant, a trader at Pembina in 1850 and partner of Charles -
Bottineau at St. Joseph. . (5, p. 236; 17, p. 50)
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" pierre Botineau, who hud guided the troops of Generzl Terry into the Devils Lake
region the summer before. The Indian who had planned this daring project, and led this
T:;i attempt to steal the garrison herd was no less a personage than Sitling Bull, then a
# chief of minor importance, with only & small following.

On May 25%, 1868, two mail cariers were captured, stripped of their property, but
escaped. These two men were Brown, and a French half-breed., They had been put in the
place of MeDonald and Rolette, after the latter wére murdered. They were captured by
3itting Bull and his bank near the shore of Strawberry Lake in the evening just at dusk.
The pack horse carrying the provisions for the mail carriers, however, had become frigh-
tened and run away. Many of the Indians started after i%, leaving only few of their
number to guard the mail carriers. The latter succeeded in giving their captors the
slip, crept down into the underbrush and rushes by the lake, slipped into the water and
waded or swam to the opposite shore, whence they made their way back for Fort Stevenson.

On August 23rd, 1868, a small party between Fort Totten and Fort Stevenson was attacked
by the Siouxe One sergeant and two men were killed, and the stock of the party was
captured., Frapk Palmer, who was with the party, gives a detailed account of this incident
which is substantially as follows: "The party consisting of six soldiers and two citisens,
had halted in the morning about eleven o'clock and pitched their camp on a high hill,
the mosquitos being very bad in the low places. This spot was near the Big Coulee and
not far from the site of the town of Maddock. After dinner Mr. Palmer and a soldier
teamster started out to get the horses which were grazing near the foot of the hill.
when they hdd reached the coulee bottom, about three hundred yards from camp, they suddenly
heard a volley of shots fired and a great warewhoop in their rear. The camp had been
attacked by Indisns. They turned and hurried back to the camp, where they found that the
sergeant and two of the scldiers had been killed. The sergeant was shot through the
heart, and each of the soldiers received two balls. A mixth shot bhad struck a wagon tire
near the head of the civilian mail carrier. Upon examining the ground they concluded
that the Indigns had determined to wipe out the whole party. Having full knowledge of
the customs of small parties and knowing that two of the men would leave the camp to get
the horses, the Indiens had crept up to within thirty yards of the camp. The attack had
not accomplished the full jurpose of the savages, and they retreated, driving off the
horses of the mail party as they wemnt. The mail carrier, however, had one horse that
was not takenm with the rest, and with this he made his way back to Fort Totten and se-
cured a military guard of twenty-five men who saw the mail through to Fort Stevenson.

Such were the dangers to which mail carriers on the west route, from Totten to
gtevenson, were exposed, The east route, however, from Totten to Abercrombie, was
comparatively free from Indiams, lying as it did, closer to the border of civilization.
Thomas Crayon continued to carry the mail over this route once ev ry week until 1871.

He traveled on horse back in the summer and with a wagon or sleigh and four mules after
the weather grew cold. By 1871 regular mail stations were established along this route
at the following places: first, out from Fort Totten, at Red willow Lake, in the south-
western part of what im now Nelson county and sbout eighteen miles west of Aneta; secong
at Sibley's Crossing on the Sheyenne river in the north central part of Barmes county,
near the present site of Ashtabulaj third, Maple River Crossing in the southern part of
gass County, and close to the present post office of Watson. By this time two mail
carriers were employéd by Blakely and Carpenter, the parties who had contracted for the
carrying of the mail over this route. IMr. Edward Lohnes carried the mail from Totten
as far as Sibley's Crossing where he met and camped with a second carrier who had charge
of the mail on the east half of the route. The mail was carried over the east route
until 1873 when the Northern Pacific railroad reached Jamestown, and the .mail began to
be carried from that point. The stations on this route were as follows: first, Bren-
ner's Crossing on the Sheyemne river, about eighteen miles southeast of the fort, in

the north central part of what is now Eddy countys second, Lake Bellow, near the present
site of Larrabee in the northeastern part of Foster county; third, Grasshopper Hill,
about twenty miles due north of Jamestown.
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When Port Totten was built there were no Indians in the immediate vieinity. During
the following winter, two traders with and interpreter, went out to the Big Bend of the
Mouse river and invited the Sioux to come into the fort. The Indians sent back & small
force of warriors to determine whether or not this invitation was made in good faith.
Being satisfied that it was, they returmed, and the Indians began graudaully to come into
the fort and settle in small bands on the reservation, in the ne.r vicinity of the post.
PTheir willingness to do so was probably due to their starving condition. The commund-
ing of licer at Fort Totten found it absolutely necessary to issue large gquantities of
rations to these Indiams during thds first winter to prevent their dying of hunger.

In 1868, Major J. K. G. Whistler, the commander at Fort Totten, reported that the
largest number of Indians who had receive: rations at that post was 681, In 1870, J« We
Deniels, the United States Agent on the Sisseton Indian Agenecy, Dakota Territory, re-
ported that of the Indians at Devils Lake there were 152 men, 143 women, end 245 children,
a total of 540. During the summer of 1870 they had raised 276 bushels of corn from seed
furnished by the agency. He recommended that an Indian agent be appointed for the Fort
Potten reservation. At this time there were no buildings for employees or for storage
of supplies, but the acting assistant quartermaster at Fort Totten had offered the old
log quarters for the use of the Indian Department during the coming winter.

On Mey 4%, 1871, Willaim H., Forbes, the first United States Indian igent, arrived at
Fort Totten, On September 302 of the same year, he reported the number of Indians on
the Agenecy to be 732, During the summer of 1871 they had planted over one hundred acres,
and had reised 1,500 bushels of corn, 500 bushels of potatoes, 1,000 bushels of turnips,
and had cut and stacked 200 tons of hay. The agent lived at the old fort for lack of
better guarters.

On September 6%, 1872, Major Forbes again reported to the Indian department. The
largest number of Indians on the Agency during the year was 725. The wheat and ocats
crop thet summer hod been destroyed by grasshoppers. However, the Indians hed harvested
2,000 bushels of corn, 1,500 bushels of potatoes, and had put up 300 tons of hay. A
saw and grist mill run by a twanty-five horse power engine had been built. This to-
gether with other agency machinery to the value of $5,000 had been purchased. More than
fifty men had adopted citizens' dress. The Indian agent and his employees still occupied
the buildings of the cld fort.

A Catholie School was to be established at the agency. Reverend Father J. B. Genin
was the missionary at the post. The Indians on the reservation numbered, males 249,
females 471, total 720. On September 10, 1875, Paul Becksmith, successor of Major Forbes
deceased, came to Fort Totten to assume the duties of Indian agent at that post. At
this time there were 800 Indians on the reservation, 365 males, 335 females. There
were twenty white employees and twelve others. There was one school building, with four
teachers and thirty-five pupils. There were sixty-nine church members but no church
building, Pive agency buildings had been erected during the year., Of the Indiams 275
wore citizen's dress. A manual labor school was at this time conducted by the Gray Nuns
of Montreal. During this season the following amount of produce had been raiseds 5,000
bushels of corn, 5,000 bushels of potatoes, 2,000 bushels of turnips, and 100 bushels of
onions. The Indians had 560 horses, 122 oxen, 98 wagons and they occupied 109 log houses.

The Fort Totten Indian Reservation had been provided for in a treaty signed February
19%, 1867, between the United States government and the Sisseton, Wahpeton, and Cut-head
Sioux. This reservation contained about 360 square miles of territory, but within its
borders an embracing about one-half of its area was the Fort Totten military reservation,
established by an order of the president of the United States, Jinuary 112, 1870.

The boundaries of this military reservation had been described previously and recomm=
ended in the following General Orders:
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Diary of O. G. Wall, 1st Minn. Mounted Rangers - 1863

Dana Wright

Aug. 10th. Start out this mormng enroute to Camp Atchison. We
follow our old trail today. Arrive at Camp Atchison about four
o'clock. Find the boys all well but some of them have been pretty
sick. They captured Little Grow's son since we left. Bully good
supper this evening which we relished very much. Distance today
22 miles (from the James river camp).

Aug. 11th. Lay over today to graze mules and horses. Tonight we
are ordered to get ready to march to Ft. Fidgley in the morning

by way of Snake river, 250 miles from here (near Aberdeen, S. D.
D.W.) it is one of the (foolish?) things that has transpired this
summer. There is abeut 250 of us going where old Sibley would not
o with the whole command. ‘

Aug. 12. Left camp this moraing from Camp Atchisoncenroute fer
Snake river with about 300 men. Colonel McPhail commamding besides
a long and lonesome trip we have got to live on half rations or
starve, distance today 10 miles.

Aug 13. Left Camp Austin this morning on our long and lonesome way.
We saw the train (Sibley's) today. +*t was six or eight miles from
us. Distance today 15 miles.

Aug. 1%. Left Camp Cox this morning. Cold as thunder, Looks like
the stormwill reach us soon. We captured six of Bracketts cattle
last night at least they are supposed t o be his. We pass salty lake
today and strike the coteau. We camp tonight on a salt lake. It
has commenced r.ining. I drove mmles awhile today but flinding it
toughf bushmess I quit. Distance today 20 miles.

Aug. 15. Left Camp Barton this morning and as we cameout of camp

we saw a baffalo bull. He came within 200 yards of us. Lt. Thurber
chased him some two or three miles and had to give up the chase. We
camp tonight about three miles from the Sheyenne River. We saw
several antelope today. Distance today 18 miles.

Aug. 16. Lay over today at Camp Johnsoh where the Sioux Indians
had a council, 1953. (this was on upper, Dog creek, west of
Kathryn, N. D. Identified personally by Louis LaBelle and Wm.
Quinn to D.W. in 1923).



Sl s — -
~ Gt o PO
y . “TAENE £l L
- ; & & 5‘.« -

o

To protect an overland route from Minnesota into Montana, General
Terry, Commander of the Military Department of Dekots, on July 17,
1867, established Fort Totten on the south shere of Devils “ake.
It was garristned by three companies of the Thirtyv-first Infantry
under Captain wainwright. Mail from Ft. Stevenson was carried
weekly by men who braved the always possible attacks by Indkns

in which several carriers were killed.

Book  NORTH DAKOTA 1957
By: Annie 5, Greenwood

On the north side of & bend in the Missouri River, about 50 to 60
miles northwest of Bismarck, a Fur Treding Post was built which
was glso used for military purposes.

Book NORTH DAKOTA
BY: Annie 8. Greenwood

FAMED PORT TOTTEN WILL BE PRESERVED A8 WHESTERN SHRINE
TAKEN FROM "GRIT" published October 14, 1962:

Efforts of the state of North Dakote and interested residents have
resulted in a pledre that the almost 100~year-old frontier army post
at Fort Totten, near Devils bake, will be preserved.

8ixteen buildings still stand as they were built about 1867,
wvhen Fort Totten guarded the edge of the white man's civilization
against the Sioux Indians. Some historians say the fort is the last
remaining cavalry post in the United States in its original form.

Visitors can see where General Custer's Seventh Cavalry gquartered
just before it met its fate at Little Big Horn in Montana.

A guirk of fate r revented Fort Totten from being torn down by
settlers when the Sioux were f inally subdued at the end of the 19th
Centwry. Whereas most settlers eagerly appropriated any building
materials they could cart away from old forts, Fert Totten in 1880
wes turned over to t he Interior Department as an Indian School.

ihe Department of the Interier recently agreed to deed the
buildings to the North Dakota Historical Socilety, after t ose interested
in saving the fort got a $15,000,00 aprropriation from the state.
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HISTORICAL FORT TOTTEN CAVALRY SQUARE OF TERRITORIAL DAYS
DEEDED TO NORTH DAKOTA.

One of the last of this country's historic cavalry squares,
and the only fort of the old Dakota Territorial days which still
retains its original buildings, has been deeded to the North Dakota
Historical Society by thelS. Bureau of Indian Affairs.

014 Fort Totten, built in 1867 for the Seventh Cavalry, will
be d eveloped as a nhistorical and recreational site, according to
Russel Reid of Bismarck, historical society director.

The transfer is the result of two years of negotiatiops and
includes nearly eight acres of land and 18 buildings, 16 miles
south of Devils lake.

The buildings on the square, probably the oldest permanent
group of buildings inthe state, were occupied by the men of the
Seventh Cavalry for only two years before they joined General
George Custer at Fort Lincoln near Mandan.

In 1876, Custer and 276 soldiers of the Seventh Cavalry
rode out of Fort Lincoln to their deaths at the Little Big Horn
in Montana.
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The plan of the society is to maintain the squere in its
original formas nearly as possible, with the barracks buildings
and officers quarters to be restored with complete furnishings
whenever possible.

Also to be included are museums of natural history and

geography, Indian and military history, pioneer c.bins and trans-
portation collections.

Reid said the work would be a continuing task, reguiring
state appropriations and the cooperation of area organizatiens
and the Sioux tribe at Fort Totten.

He said 10 years probebly would be needed to completely
restore the fort and create the museums.

The land involved in the transfer was ceded to the United
States by the Sioux Indians. Although the Indians had no interest
in the land invloved, no steps were taken to turn it back to the
state until the Fort Totten tribe was brought into consultation
with these persons interested in the restoration project.

Last June the Sioux tribe at Fort Totten gave 1ts official
consent to the tr.nsfer.

The buildings on the square, most of them of brick construction,
are ingeneral disrepair, and some haed been condemned as long as 30
years ago.
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a/z;z ?" STEVENS 1853

Lake Jessie. On the 11th of July, traveled 10 miles to a camp among
hills, a high hill overlooked the cgmp from which they could see ranges
to west. A Mileg west of Mose, near Griggs - Foster County line.

12th- route over high hills- at 11 miles crossed a deep slough-good
water, stopped an hour and had lunch. About & mile further crossed a
fine little stream which I took to be the beaver lodge. We made 16 miles
and camped on the side of a small lake, water and grass good, scaricity
of wood. (Grace City)

13th - We were encamped on the banks of a lake, being almost surrounded
by sloughs, to avoid which we had to make a considerable detour about

11 miles from camp. We made a halt on the bank of a slough where we

had lunch. Our road is over a plateau, one or two sloughs interrupting
out progress. 16 miles from camp we struck James R. running east nearly
on our compass course, followed it 5 miles, camped, some widening of

the river - 1ike a lake.

14th - fired 3 rounds with a howitzer to call in Tinkham.

Fisk says 21% miles from Lake Jessie to a very beautiful lake. 1%
miles perfectly round, low while sandy beach. Probably Billend.

He passed there July 18, 1863. Called the lake Townsend in honor of
Adjt. Gen. of U. S.

Stevens passed July 12, 1853.
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From the time of Lewis and Clark the territory comprising the presemt State of
North Dakota became yesrly better kuownto those emgaged in the fur irade, although
the United Stutes Governuent hed done litile in the line of official explorations.

So far as official information im the possession of the people weal, practically
nothing had been added to tne gemeral stock of knowledge contributed by the reports
of lewis anc Clurk @nd others asscciated with thea.

By the late '308 the govermmeat had revived its interest im the trams-Mississippi
countyy anc several mem of science hed been financed tc make exploratory expeditions.
The first expedition of this mature sent to Nerth Dakots was that of Jean N. Nieoliet,
suthorized in 18306,

Jean N. Nicollet was a Freamchasn who had come to the United States in the early
'308 for the purpose of making & study of the physical geography and geology of
different purts of the United Staves, TFor the first five years he had coafined his
secientific excursions to the Alleghany remge anc the upper Mississipri. Nicollet's
work hed been called to the attemtion of the War Lepartmeat, however, amd in 1838
he was asked by the War Departmemt and the topographical bureau jointly to umdere
take the collection of informetiom anc the comstruction of @ map of the territories
lyiag west of tne Mississippi.

Lieutenant Johm Ce. Fremont, afterward to acquire fame as & pethfinder sad military
officer, was assigned to Nicollet as an assistant., Nicollet orgemnized his perty in 1839
and took passage up the Misscuri as far as Fort Pierre, which he reached om Jume 12.
At this peint sever al new members were added, among them being three interpreters
axd guides, William Dixon, Louison Freaiere, ana Baptiste Doriomn's son who had beea
the interpreter at the post for the American Fur Company.

The whole purty, now consisting of nineteen members, began on July 1 to cross the
Missouri to the east side with their horses and equipment. By July 3, the cressing
having beea succe-sfully mede, the party quitied the east bank of the river amc head-
ed northeast. After a ten days' mareh of 110 miles tney reached the Jaues Hiver up
whose valley they were to go. Their explorations were continuec up the James River
by easy stages aud across the divides of the James and the Sheyeume to Devils Lake,
whien they resched on July 29. For nine days exploratious were made sroumnd the shore ..u
lines of this laske, and them the party turmed tc the eastward amnd southward, follow=-
ing the watershed betweem the Sheyemme &nd the Red, Nicellet's jourmal of the exe
pedition gives us ne furtner details of the retura journey.

Nicoliet had mever mmde excursioms on the prairies befcre amc he became quite ea-
amored of the vust, treeless expamses., Im his report he says, "It is difficult to
express by words the varied impressiors which their spectacle produces. Their sight
pever wearies. To look at a prairie up or down; tc ascend one of its umdulatious;
to resch & smsll plateau, moving from wave to wave over altermaie swells and depresss
jons; anu, finally, to reach the vast inverminable low prairie, that extemds iivself inm
front,--be it for hours, days, or weeks, one never tires; pleasurable and exhilarate
ing semsations are all the time felt; emnui is never experienced, Doubiless there
are moments whem excessive heat, @ want of fresh water, amu other privetions, remind
one thut life is & toil; but these drawbacks ere of shori duratios. There is almost
always a breeze over them., The securiiy ome feels in knowing that there are no con=
cealed dangers, so vast is the éxtent which the eye takes in; mo difficulties of
road; @ far spresding verdure, relieved by a profusion of variously colored flowers;
the azure of the sky above, or the tempest Lhat cam be seem from its begimning to
its end; the besutiful modificetions of the chamging cliouds; the curious looming of
objects bLetween earth and sky, taximg the ingenuity every moment to rectify;e-all,
everything, is caleulsted to excite tne perceptions, amu keep alive the imsgination,
In the summer season, especially, everything upem the prairies is cheerful, graceful,
end snimeted. The Indimms, with herds of deer, amtelope, anu buffalo, give life and
motion to them. It is then they should be visited; amd I pity tle msa whose soul
could remein ummoved under such & scene of exciteament."
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At Fremont's suggestion, Lake Jessie near the presemt city of Cooperstown, was
pamed for Jessie Bentom who afterward became his wife. Her father, Semator Thomas
H, Benton of Misseuri, served thirty years in tne United States senate and was one
of the moot distinguished men in Congress, Fremoni was the first nomimee of the
Republican pasrty for presiuemt in 1856.

The Nicollet explorations were the first mede through the central part of Nerth
Dgkova,

STEYENS SURVEY

The election of Franklin Pierce to the presidemcy of the Umited States in Novem=
ber, 1852, insured a vigorous pelicy of expleration and settlement of the vast domsain
beyond the Mississippi. Om March 3, 1853, Comgress appropriated $150,000 for the
exploration amu survey of railroad routes from the Mississippi to the Pacifie, to
be expended by the secretary of war under the di.ection of the president. It was
early determined by Jefferson Davis, the mew secretary of war, to survey four main
routes to the Facific.

Isaac Ingalls Stevens, & major oi engimeers in charge of the United States army
coast survey, applied both for the leadership of the merthera railway survey and
for the govermorship of Wabhingtom Territery whieh had just been fo.med from the
morthern part of Oregon. The latter post carriea with it also the ex officio posi~-
tion of superintemdent of Imdiem affairs for the territory. Stevens was a graduate
of the United States Military Academy at West Point ano had served as captain of
engineers in the war wi.h Mexico witn great credit. In emergy &ma ability he had
few equals engaged in the public service.

(ne of President Pierce's first official scts was the appointment of Steveans as
territorial govermor of Washington, confirmed wher the latter was but thirty-four
years old anu at the height orf his mental anu physical powere. After receiving this
comnission Stevems cuntinued to uige his appointment as leader of the proposed aorte
hern railroad survey. He believed that by msking the survey he could promote the
interests of the mew territery by obtaining & lagge amount of useful information in
regard to the agricultural, mineral, commercial anu menufacturing resources of the
eountry through wuica the survey would pess, «nd that the information thus obtained
when spread abrowd would inmvite settlers to develop the dormant rescurces. Im a
letter to Seeretary or War Jeffersom Davis, he wrote, "Shoudd an expedition be en-
trusted to my charge, I pledge the devetion of all my force, emergy amd judgment to
its accomplishment.”

Stevens' aggumens cerricd his peint amd he was mmde leader o: the expedition to
survey the morthesn railroad route from Saint Faul to Fuget Scuna. The party which
he orgamized fur the susvey included engineers, sappers, miners, surgedms, natura-
lists, interpreters, hunters anu guides. The megnitude of the takk was great. The
domein to be covered was 2,000 miles in lemgth by 250 in breadth. The route led
acress 1,000 miles of arid plain anu two great moumtain ranges, through a regionm
still in the hends of piedatory tribes, scme oi them by no meams fréemdly.

Among ouvher duties, Stevens was imsiructed to examine the navigability of rivers,
fina feasible moumtein pesses, abu determune the depth of smow im winter; to collect
information on climste, geology, @mimal and plamt life; to treat witn tne Imdiams;
to make sketches of the tepography; and to survey & practicable route for a railresad,

His early matured plan was to operate twoe msin parties at the same time, cne at
each end of the route, In carrying out this plam he placed Capt. George B. MeClellan
of the United States army, later a major gemeral, in charge of the westera ead,
charged wi.h the duty of explorimg the coast ramge anc the territory inland for 200
miles. Stevens himself took active charge of the easterm emd which covered 1,800
miles ama included the Roeky amd Bitter Root mountains, FProm each of the main bodies
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subsiddary parties were sent out to collect all possible information bearing upon the
specific objects of the expedition.

The part of the expedition organized by Stevens in Washington City set out for the
West on May 9, 1853, with important stops on the route to complete arrengements. It
reached Saint Louis on the fifteenth and on the twenty-third proceeded up the Mississ-
ippi to S&int Paul, then a village of 1,200. At Saint Anthony Pierre Bottineau, after-
ward so well known as a guide in North Dakota expedition, was employed as a guide and
Menoc as a hunter. The expedition left Saint Anthony June T, 1855

Stevens! orders for the jourmey required men to go habitually armed, arms to be in-
gpected morning and evening; forbade marching on Sunday, when a thorough inspection of
persons and property was to be conducted and a bath was required of each manj instruct-
ed each member of the scientific corps to take care of his own horse and to lead and
unload his own personal baggage; forbade any firing of guns on the march; and limited
personal bapggage to twenty-five pounds for each man. These regulations were stringent
but salutary.

The main train crossed the Red River near th town of Breckenridge, and the James
River some miles north of Jamestown, continuing just south of the Mouse River loop to
Fort Union. Detached trips were made on both sides of the general course pursuedbby the
main paptye.

The crossing at Breckenridge occurred June 29. On July 1 the Stevens party met Norman
Kittson and Joe Rolette, members of the Minnesota territorial legislature, Charles
Cavileer, collector of customs, and Father Delacour, all of Pembing. These men wére on
their annual trip to Saint Paul with furs, robes, pemmican and dried buffalo meat
obtained in trade from the half-breeds of the Red River settlements.

Continuing their northwest course, on July 10 Stevens' party arrived at Lake Jessie,
named, as we have already seen, by Nicollet in 1839. All members of the party took muchk
interest in the country and the life of the plains, and all vied with one another in
bringing specimens for Doctor Suckley, the naturalist of the party, to stydy and preserve.

On July 16 in western Wells County the Stevens expedition fell in with a train of Red
River hunters which consisted of 1,300 men, women and children, 824 carts, and about
1,200 animals. The half-breed hunters of Pembina made two hunts each year, each hunt
consuming sbout two months, The first started in June when animals were killed for
food, the tongue dried, and the meat made into pemmican. The skins at this season were
of no value for robes but were used for making skin tepees. The fall hunt began in
October when they got meat and robes to sell to the Hudson's Bay Company or to haul to
Saint Paul where they were exchanged for ammuntion, coffee, sugar, tobacco and dry goods.

Before a hunt started the half-breeds met and selected a governor who regulated the
party's movememts, adjudicated differences, and took command in cgse of skirmish with the
Sioux. The leader of this party was Governor Wilkie who, according to Stevens, was
about sixty years of age, of fine appearance and pleasing manners. Their priests accom-
panied them and on the Sabbqth there was neither marching nor hunting, for the day was
passed in devations.

In going into camp the hunters arranged their carts hub to hub with shafts pdinting
inward. About twenty feet inside the shafts the 104 conical skin tepees were lined up
paralledl to the line of carts. Within the inclosure thus formed the horses were kept
at night, although in the daytime when not in use they were put on herd outside.
Thirty-six of the men were on guard all night. Stevens was much pleased with the good
conduct and hospitable kindness of the half-breeds.

Stevens' route lay to the northwestward by the high hill known a8 Butte de Morale, so
named for a half-breed who was killed there in an engagement between a war party of
Smoux and a body of Red River hunters; thence by Dogden Butte and the south loop of the
Mouse River to Fort Union. The main part of the expedition reached Fort Union, 715.5
miles distant from Saint Paul as measured by the adometer, on August 1. This distance
had been covered in fifty-five days or, excluding halts, forty-eight traveling days.

The party left Fort Union after a short stay for rest and repairs and continued the
journey to the Pacific. It would take the reader too far afield to give details of the
expedition beyond Fort Union. It is not out of place to say, however, that the route
explored throughout its course is practically followed today either by the Northern
Pacific or by the Great Northern Reilway, a fact which attests to the accuracy and the



% ~
worth of the surveys.

when passing through North Dakota, the artist with the expedition made a number of
fine sketches which are reproduced in Volume I of the Pacifice Railway Survey reports.
Among the sketches may be named the following: a Buffalo Herd near Lake Jessie; a
Landscape on the Mouse River; and a View of Fort Union as it appeared but a few years
before it was demolished.

Gen. I. I. Stevens met a heroic death in the Civil ware at the Battle of Chantilly,
September 1, 1862. Stevens'! old regiment, the Seventy-ninth New York Highlanders, had
lost five color bearers in succession. When the last one fell General Stevens ran in,
picked up the flag, shouted, "Highlanders, my Highlgnders, follow your general," and
rushed forward, bearing the flag. He fell at the moment of victory with a bullet thr-
ough his brain, the flagstaff still clutched in his lifeless fingers and the folds of
the flag draped around him. He had just saved the army from an appalling disaster, for
with only nine regiments he had stopped the forward march of several times that number
under Stonewall Jackson until the Upion army could prepare to meet the onslaught of the
enemy .

At the time of General Stevens! death President Lincoln and his advisors were consid-
ering him as a possible commander of the armies in Virginia.
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PIERRE BCTTINEAU.

The most noted guide in the early military expeditions and railrogds reconnaissance
in early day Dakota. Bottineau County is named in his honor.

Accompanying the expedition as chief guides were Maj. J. R. Brown, for many years a
reservation agent among the Sioux in Minnesota, and Pierre Bottineau, whom we have
already met as a guide to the Stevens Pacific Railway Survey that crossed North
Dakota in 1853. The Rew. Stephen R. Riggs, for forty years a missionary among the
Sioux and an authority on their language, was interpreter for the expedition.
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Camp Atchison nemed for Captain Charles B. Atchigon . i
on staff eof Gen, M, H, Sibley in 1863. 'jéoafw%fwh N Dakes

On page 95 of F, B, Heitmen's Historiesl Army Repister, ve have the
following information:

Charles B. Atchison of Il1l., 3d. Lt., 34 Inf, Sth Aug. 1861
l1st Lt. 9th Feb, 18631 Capt. and escting aide camp 1llth July 1862 to
1st Sent. 18663 Captein 3d Inf, 5th Mareh 1867; unassiinad 17 May
1869, assigned to 14th Inf. 1st Jan. 1871; brevet lst Lt. July 1st,
1862 for gallent and meritouriousservice at the battle of Malvern
Hill, Va.; Captein 24 April 1865 for gallant and meritourious service
during the operations resulting intthe fell of Richmond, Va.; Major
2d April for gallant and meritorious services duriy the (Civil) Warj
Lt-Colonel 28th Oct, 1867 for faithful and meritiourous services
during the war; brevet major and Lt-Colonel volunteers 31st Mareh
1865 for gallant conduct in the field; and colonel of volunteers
31st March 1865 for gallant conduct in the fleld, and colenel of
volunteers 17 November, 1865, for faithful and meritiourius service
%ggéng the war, wholly retirned 25th February, 1876. Died 10 May,

Captain Atchison hed been serving on the staff of General John
Pope who was in command of the district of t he Nerthwest with head-
quarters at Milwaukee, Wisconsin, on or about October 27th, 1862, his
first duty was to muster into the United States service the 7th
Regiment of Minnesota Volunteer Infantry, which had slready been in
active seryice against the Sioux Indians in the Minnesota uprising.
He was later attached for duty as staff officer on General Sibley's
staff, it seems that he was & useful addition, as practically all
8ibley's men were civilians with no expreience with the round about
ways of the army or other govermment agencies.

Cantain Atchison accompanied the Sibley expedition to the Missouri
river and return to Minnesota, he c¢ontinued in service in the army
but dates en? locations are obsecure. As no furt er referrence is
made to him.

Juclosing the carpaign, 1t was Ceneral Sibley's plan to cover
a wide area in returning to Ft. Snelling in Minn. He intended to
send flanking parties out from the main body to make a display ef
forces to any Indians who might 1linger in the country. OUne of these
parties diverged to the south or right of the main trail, the peint
of spperation being near Camp Burt, or to be exact, -n Sectien 3,
Twp. 14k, Range 59. This wes about three miles east of “annaford.
Here on the morning of the 13th Colonel Samuel McPhail of the lst
Minn., Mounted Rengers was detached with five companies of cavalry
and a cannon to scout down the Sheyenne river past Bear Den Hill,
where Fort Ranson was located in 1867, thence vack to Minnesota.
The trail he laid out was later the Ft. Ranson-Ft. Totten Trail.

The Infantry from Sibley's column was given brief leave at their
homes in Minnesota before being sent south to take part in the Civil
kwar. The Minnesota Rgngers were disbanded and reorganized into the
2nd Minn., and served with Genersl Sully in 1864, west of the Missour,



The buffalo were nearly gone, the Indians subdued and sulky,
were herded

onto reservations and no longer a danger to the Minnesota
settlements which were

quick to expand and sweep over the western
prairies. The Sibley expedition was now history.
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FORT ABERCROMBIE STATE PARK.

This park is located at Abercrombie and is on the bank of the Red
River and contains a portion of the military reserve upon which was
built in 1858 Fort Abercrombie, the first Federal fort within the
limits of the state. During the Dakota Indian outbreak of 1862 the
garrison of this fort was subject to a fieree gttack by the Indians,
Fort Abercrombie served in early days as a defense for the first set-
tlers of the Red River Valley and as the gateway into the new lands of
the West and Northwest.

Two deeds cover the transfer of the present site of the park to the
state, as followst

Lots 1 and 2, containing according to survey thereof made by W. A.
Baker, civil engineer, six and twenty-five hundred twenty-eight
(6.2528) acres and known as the Abercrombie State Park, being part
of the north half of the southeast quarter of Section 4, Township
134 north, Range 48 west.

Most of my study this winter has been on the Sully expeditions, espec-
ially the 1865 trip across to Devils Lake (Sully Hill) from Ft. Rice
also the supporting column under Col. Carnahan which came up from St.
Paul over the Sibley trail of 1863. After campaign, in which they saw
no hostile Indians, Sully went west to Ft. Berthold and Carnahan kept
east of the Sheyenne and struck the Red river at Georgetown, Minn.

a few miles north of Fargo.
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Early explorations in Griggs County Cocpenitown, N.

Omitting the Indian and Metis hunters and the wandering unrecorded whites
who were sometimes found in the border land between the land occupied by
the whites and those used by the Indians, the earliest white travelers

in this part of North Dakota were probably J. N. Nicollet and his engineer
officer Lt. John C. Fremont. Their exploration of the country west of

the Sheyenne from near Bear Ben Hill and Devils Lake is illustrated in

the map which they made following their trip in 1839. This indicates

that they paused briefly at Lake Jessie on the 25-26th July, 1839.

Their camp was on the bare knoll north of the old Mc€olloch building

site, the legal description, the SW. Sec. 14-147-60. Lt Fremont named the
lake for the lady whom he later married. Jessie Benton, daughter of
Senator Thomas Benton of St. Louis, Mimsouri. It is said that the

Senator did not approve of the proposed match and had a hand in sending
the young lieutenant in to the wilderness hoping the romance would cool
off. The two young leaders of this exploring party noted several landmarks
by name which are still in use. Butte Michaude, on the Sheyenne north-
east of Cooperstown (center of Sec. 35-T. 148-R.59), Nicollet says

the elevation was 1586 above the sea and 120 feet above the surrounding
prairie. The name is supposed to have been taken from some old Indian
leader buried in the artificial mound on the summit. The name being
French would indicate that it originated after the Indians had contact
with the whites. Metis hundlers told me many years ago that on an
occasion when they had a hunting camp in the vicinity, one of their men
named Michaude became separated from the camp in a fog and was absent

long enough so that his friends became anxious for his safety, after

he was relocated they called the butte Michaude or "the place where



Michamde was lost”.

On P. 155 of Upham's Glacial Lake (1887) Agassiz he says another
angle of the moraine is marked by the conspicious hill called Butte
Mashue, from the name of an Indian who was buried in the mound on its summit.
This hill, situated in the east half of Section 35-T. 148-R. 59, rises
150 feet or 175 feet aboue the general level east and north, or nearly
350 feet above the Sheyenne river, which is only a mile distant to the
northeast.”

On Nicollet's map the name is spelled Michaux, they made the
elevation 1386. Their map also gives the location of Horse Butte and Lake,
also on the Sheyenne, on SW % 24-T. 147 R. 58, named from an Indian tra-
dition. Farther up the Sheyenne the Beaver lodge creek and Poplar groves
are located. Both are land marks from long ago, they are in Nelson
county.

In the text of Nicollet's report, P. 138 he uses the name "Lake Jessie"”
with the French name (Lac des Bois or Wood Lake) he makes no further
reference to Lake Jessie in the text.

The elevation in the téxt is given as 1586 for Butte Michaude
possibly the 5 was originally 3 or 1386 feet elevation which would be
nearer correct. He gives the water level of the Sheyenne at north of
Beaver Lodge creek at 1328-the plateay 1486, this is some distance
to the northwest up the:iSheyenne Mouth of lst Bald Hill creek (riverie
aux Buttes Pelees)

47°-8'-47"; 94°%-49'-30"

q Lake Jessie (Lac des Bois) 47°-32'-32"; 98°-1'-45"

X at Beaver Lodge, level of plateau; 47°-46'-29"; 98°-13'-30".
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Born of French parentage Jamuary 20, 1813 in Savanab, Georgia, his boy=
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hodd was rather turbulent, and his earlier atiempts to settile down in a
profession unsatisfactory, After acting successively as tutor on a
privete family, professor of mathamatics on the United States Frigate
Independance, and engineer on surveys in the southern states he accompe
enied Nicollet's expedition in its explorations between the Missouri and
the British line., While thus engeged he received in July 7, 1838, a
commission as 2nd Lieutenant in the corps of topographical enginecrs,
While in Washington in 1840, engaged in a report of these expeditions,
he met and became engaged to Jessie Benton, the daughter of Senator
Benton of 8t. Louis, and this lady then only sixteen, he secretely
married in October 19, 1841, In 1842 he started upon the famous nrirst
expedition™ to the Wind river mountains, ascending Fremont's peak now
know as Pike's peak, on August 15th, On his return to Wash%ngton the
report of his expedition wng lald before Congress, which breWetted him
18t lieutensnt, The report attracted great attention, both at home and
sbroad, and young Fremont had the honor of high eemplimentarieggzﬁ
Fumbelt,

In 1843, he begen his explorations beyond the Rockes. ILe returned
to Kenasas in 184l and after preparing his reports was breWetted captain
in 1845, and sent out on his third expeditlon to explore the great basin
end the maratime region of Oregon and Cealifornia, This was the most
eVentful of all his jourmeys, Threatened at Monteray by the Nexlean
government for his refusal to leave Californis, Fremont withdrew into
Oregon, but meeting in 1846 despatched directing him to wateh over the
interests of the United States, in California, there bédng reasons to
apprehend that that province would be transferred to Great Britian,

he promptly retraced his steps. The American settlers, whom the Mexlcan

goverment threatened to destroy, flocked to Fremont's camp and in a o



_ “Fremont-2

\mbnth, northern California was free., On July Lth, 1846, Premont was
elected its governor, In conjuncibilon with Commodore Stoctol he under-
took to reduce the entire state, but the Mexican war interfered and at
its close the territory was ceded to the U, S8, by Mexico,

He was court martialed in 1848 for some trouble in relation to the
governorship and resigned from the service, refusing the accept pardon
from President Polk., He was afterward elected senator from California,
In 1856 he became "free soll™ cendidate for President. Soon after the
ontbreak of the Ciwil War he was made a major general: there were dif-
ferences between him and the administration and he resigned. In 1870 he
was made governor of Arigona,

General Fremont was outstanding as an explorer in the western areas
of the United States and was commonly called in his later life the "Path~
finder," He was active in politics but less successful and had decided
views on various matters which inveolved him in unpleasant situations and
disputes.

He has been described as a slightly built man about 5«9, very active

and carried a himselfl lightly till in upper years when peritonitus attacked -

him about five days before his death which occured in New York, July 1
(?) 1690, Puneral at the Hpiscopal church, of which he was a member,

He left two sons ané a daughter, besides the widow,

Fremont was a brown haired manj he never sbhaved, tho he trimmed his
beard neatly when and where he could, His eyes were large and blue, nose
aquiline, his forehead high and capascious., He was a very modest man a=
bout his own accomplishments or plans, BSuch was the man who named Lake

Jessie in 1839,

/

/
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Captain William H. Burt, age 35 when appointed 2nd Lieut. and recruiting officer
August 8, 1862, in Minnesota. Captain Company C, 7th Infantry 24th. August 1862.
Captain Burt was a lawyer in civil lifc Qnﬂ spent considerable of his peraensl funds in
supplies for his men, Toward the clase of the Civil War the regiment was stationed near
Daubhim's Iaiand in Mobile Bay andihad oysters hailed in by the wagon load from the bay.
He died in March 15th, 1866.

Some personal couments ﬁnde by men who knew him were that he was a large man with a
voice to match, who made short cuts to his objettive. While he was absent on the Devils
Lake expedition, one of his wmen left behild at Camp Atchison obtained liquor at the sutlers
tent and became disotéarly. On return the captain spilled the remaimder of the juice
without process of law.

When General Sibley left Camp Atchison on July 20th, he had been informed by the
Chippewa buffalo hunters that the main bodyof the Sioux were located about fifty miles
to the west in the Missouri coteau: he had furthet‘contact with the hunders who informed
him that a small band of the Sioux were still in the Devils Lake region, Sibley sent word
back to Camp Atchison by messenger, directing Major Cook to send a scouting expedition to
the north to investigate. This message was dated on the 22nd and sent from Camp Olin on
the James River, thié was the last message back from Sibley till om his retura trip.

Major Cook directed Captain Burt of Compamy C., 7th Mionesota Infantry to lead a
party consisting of two infantry companies and one of the cavalry to the lake region. It
is supposed that he was accompanied by ome gun and some Indian scous. He started north on
the 24th, the day Sibley had his first skirmish with the Sioux aamp and also the day Lt.
Freeman was killed and Brackett cut off from the column.

: Captain Burt was absent his scouting trip in the Devils Lake region about eight days
his trail led him to the north, where he seems to have crossed the Sheyemne River near
the mouth of Beaver Lodge Creek, this was the point where the Ft. Totten-Abercrombie trail

crossed from 1867 on. Continuing on to the Northwest Capt. Burt scouted the south shore



of Devils Lake and some distance on to the west. The only Indian he saw was Wa wi na na,
(one who appears) sixteen year old son of the hostile chief Little Crow, who had been the
leader of the uprising in 1862. The young Indian was alone and nearly starved when found,
he was Hlentified by Wm. Quinn one of the scouts, whose father had been killed at the
beginning of the outbreak.

ALBERT R. FIELD

Albert R. Field age 26 mustered into Co. C. lst Minn. Mounted Ranger Nov. 24, 1862,
Served on Sibley expedition, mustered out of service November 28, 1863.

Reentered service as Captain of Company A 2nd Minnesota cavalry at page of 27, November
27th, 1863, served to February l4th, 1866, when had several of his men froze to death on
the march from Fort Wadsworth to Abercrombie. Their bodies were not recovered until spring.

JOSEPH ROBINETTE

Joseph Robinette enlisted in Company K, lst Minn. Mounted Rangers on December 30, 1862
at the age of 28, mustered out with regiment December 10, 1863, served on Sibley expedition,
wounded by Lt. Fields at Camp Atchison, July 18, 1863.

Reentered service January 24th, 1864, Coempany M, 2nd Minn. Cavalry, veteran, discharged
for disability April 15th, 1864.

Robinette was a mixed blood Indian, his disability may have been caused by the wound
in side from pistol ball fired by Lt. Field.

CAPTAIN EDWARD CORNING

Captain Edward Corning: born and appointed from New York; lst Lieut. and regimental
quartermaster 85th New York Inf. 30th November 1861; captain in and acting quartermaster
of volunteers 24th March, 1862, resigned June 12, 1865. Acting quartermaster on Sibley's
staff during the Indians campaign of 1863; was in charge of the pontoon train.

MAJOR MICHAEL COOK

Major Michael Cook, mustered into service from Rice County, Minnesota as major in the
10th Minnesota Infantry, September 15, 1862. Aged 34. Served with Sibley in the Indian
campaigns of 1862 and 1863. Later in south in Civil War. He was shot through the lungs

at the battle of Nashville, Tenn. on December 17, 1864, and died December 27. When Camp



Atchisci was established on July 18, 1863, he was left in command while Sibley made the
flying trip to the Missouri and return.

CAPTAIN CHARLES B. ATCHISON
P, 267 Hammersly' Army Register.

(Born in Ill, Appointed from I1l.) 2nd. Lieut. 3rd. Infantry, 5th August 1861.
1st. Lieut., 9th February, 1863. Captaein, 5th March 1867. Unassigned 17th May, 1869,
Assigned to 14th Inf. lst January, 1871. Wholly retired 25th February, 1876; Brebet
ranks: Brebet lst Lieut. lst July 1862, for gallant and meritorious service at the battle
of Malvern Hill, Va. Brebet Captain 2nd. April, 1865, for gallant and meritorious service
during the operations resulting in the fall of Richmond Va. Brevet Major, 2nd April, 1863,
for gallant and meritorious agtvica durimg the war. Brevet Lieut. Colonel, 28th October,
1867 for faithful and meritoriumus service during the war."

Alsoon P. 3 'Officers of Volunteers'
Charles B. Atchison; appointed, Col. Ty. Capt. Add'l A.D.C., 11 July 1862. Mustered out
1:; Sept. 1866, (Does this refer to the same officer?)

CAPTAIN DOUGLAS POPE

Captain Douglas Pope, mide de camp on staff of Gemeral Sibley. He had previously
been on duty on the staff of Genmeral John Pope, commanding the district of the Northwest
at Milwaukee, Wisconsin.

His record in Heitman's Historical Register on Page 527. Born in Mahe; appointed
from Missouri; Captain and acting aide de camp 30th June, 1862; brevet major of Volunteers
13th March, 1865 for distinguished service in the army of the Virginia, and in the military
district of Missouri; honorably mustered out lst October, 1866; lst Lt. 37th. Inf. 28th
Jaly 1866; regimental quartermaster 27th April 1867 to 3lst of December 1868. Unassigned
19 May 1896; assigned to 13th Infantry list January 1871; brevet captain 2nd March 1867
for gallant and meritorious service at the battle of Groveton, Va. and brevet major 2nd
March 1867 for gallant and meritomious service durint the Civil War., Resigned 10th of
October 1871-Died 7th of February, 1880.

Was at bakkte of Big Mound 7/24/1863,



GEORGE A. BRACKETT

George A. Brackett long a prominent business man in Minneapolis; was
beef contractor with the Sibley expedition and drove a herd of several hundred
head along to supply the soldiers with fresh meat. Arriving at Camp Atchison,
about 150 head were detached and left for use at the camp. the balance ac-
companied Sibley to the Missouri.

On July 24th, Brackett and Lt. Ambrose Freeman left the main column and
went on an antelope hunt, they were attacked by a small party of Indians who
killed Freeman. Brackett escaped by hiding in a slough, then wandered several
days back along the trail to Camp Atchison where he arrived worn out and
nearly starved near the end of July. Exact day not established. He arrived
in the evening and crawled into the part of the camp occupied by Captain
Chase's pioneer company. He brought the first news from the Sibley column in
its advance toward the Missouri river. During his absence from Camp Atchison,
the herders who were left in charge of the beef herd there, let about 130 head
escape, also 24 mules very few were ever recovered. The loss occurred on the
2nd day of August, General Sibley was much annoyed at the carelessmess and
threatened action against those responsible. It is not of record what was
actually done, the McPhail flanking party picked up a few head of the cattle
south of Camp Burt. This camp was named for the Captain who conducted the

Devils Lake scouting party.
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K@&V FRANK DESJARLAILS.

Frank Desjariais was cne o the meil earricrs employed by Charles A, Ruffee, and
was staetioned neer the preseat site of Fort Tottem, iu the suamer of 1867 shortly
before thut post wes established.

Mr, Desjsrlais was born at Fed Lake, iMinnesc:a, in 1825. His father was a guide
and Prontiersmaen of Prench Indien extraction, and his mother a full bloed Chippewe
womsn., The boy grew up mear St. Bouiface, where both of his pereants died while he
was still @ child. At tnet time there was notiing at Fembina bLut & trading store
belonging to the Hudscn's Bay Compeny. In the summer of 1843 and again in 1044 Mr.
Des jarleis made a trip to Hudson Bay. He weni as & boat hend in the eaploy of the
Hudscn's Bay Compemy. The trip was made by wey of the Steel river, s stream flowing
into Hudson Bay. Oreat skill was reguired in rowing down this river as the current
is very swift and ine bamks are strewn with great boulcers, It reguired but cue day
to descend Steel river but three days for its ascent, as ihe men had tc¢ pull the bLoals
up the stream with ropes. The boais each had six csrsun, & about tem such bosts
were sent down to Hudson Bay et @ time. Theixr cergoes cousisted of furs and dried weat, ﬂ
and they returmed te Wimnipeg with supplies of all kinds for the Hudson's Bay Cowp- ‘
any. Mr, Desjerlais states thet iue boais which brought these sup, iies tc Hudsca
Bay had greet mests which laoked like groves of dead tiaber. They amcuored & long
way out from the shore wnile smaller boatis, whieh cewe in wiih the tide and went ocut
with the tide, brought their cargoes to lund, The bostwen froa Winmnipeg speut
seve' al day: resting on the short of Hudscm Bay before beginning their retura trip,
shich required about twelve days if the weather waes favorable.

After his returm to Wimpipeg in the summer of 18L4, Mr. Desjerlais weat to St.
Joseph where Comuocore Kittsom hed esteblished a trading post. Here he engage. in
hunting «nd trepping wita uany other Iandians and half-breeds, Two trips were m:ue
each year, cne beginmming eerly in June and lasting umtil about the mid.le of August
for the purpose of ebteining supplies of pemunican, snd the other lete in the fell
for securing furs, [Maing the firet trip the women sgcompanied the hunters anc
prepared the pemmicam, but the hunters went aloms on tie fall trip. The general
route of the hunting expedition led out from St. Joseph to Lhe esst end of Devils
Lake anu the Sheyenne river , althougn scmetimes they wemi to the Turtie vountains.
in the summer of 1868 there was &  rest scourge of gra-shoppers, -ml lhe sSeascn was
so dry thut the hunters went as far westward as the Colesu du Missouri in eearch
of gaue.

These hunting expeditions that weat out from St. Joseph were of considerable size.
Some of these helf-breed hunters hed ss uany &s twenty or twenty-five carts, and wost
of them had at least three or four. There were often several hundred certs i. the
expedition, The bufBalo were numerous, «mc the c« rte were usually brought baek heavy
leden with pemmican. During the fall trepping, the wen broke up into saall peri.ies of
four or five. Dogs, three or four to train, were used to heul back Lhe furs, and each
msR usually hed one such trein., Buffalo carcasses were used. as beit, arcund which
foxes end wolves were trapped. Of all tne animels trapped, toe pelis of oiter were
most velusble., The sioux used strips of otter hide to uraid im their haoir sao would
often trade & horse for a single pelt. At the trading post of Commodore Kitiscm iu
St. Joseph the otter hides brougnt five or six dodlers, an. a8 the haelf-breeds geu-
eraily sold their furs there, thet gentlemam is believed tc have made @n independent
fortune., The pelts most yalued after ol ter were Lhose of the black an¢ sidver foxes,
They brought five dollers, but as the half-breeds discovered luter, the traders hud
robbed them on these. In the very early days, however, before they begen tc make hats
of silk, the beaver pelts hed been the moct valusble of all, For @ time they hed
brought seven dollars per pouad, '

4n the sprimg of 1867 Pramk Lesjerlais wes employed ss « sail carricr by en agent
of Cherles Ae. Ruffee, memed Grand, then staticmed at St. Jose h., ur. Lesjarlais was
assigned a stetion ofi the south shore of Devils lake mear the present site of Fort
Totten, anv was at that poiant when the troops of Gemersl Terry resched there, early
in the summer of the same year, /. . .
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A8 he hsd been engsged for but & month &nd as the mail wes never gottem through
te Fort Totten, lesjariais soon left thaet point emc returned to his home in St.
Joseph.

In 1868 Desjerleis remcved wiih @ lerge ban8 of helf-breeds from St. Joseyh
to Wood Mowntein in the Milk River Valley of lontsns, The Grosventres, Crows, amnd
Sioux hed been at wer ian this region for years ead the fur-bearing suimals were
left comparatively undisturbed, Besiues the hulf-breeds from St. Joseph a great
asny from Pembins snd the Turtle Vounteins moved into the Milk River Va.ley at
sbout this time. Their furs, pemaicen »nd other produce they disposed of at posts
on the Milk river or scmetiues took it agrose the Cemadian line i{o stores of the
Hudson's Bay Companye

After the Custer massacre, lesjerlais wet Sitting Bull in Cenada., In faet he
acted as imterpreter for that chief at Wooa Mountein, where am agreement wus made
with Major Wise of the Eaglish aray for the removal of the Sioux intc Cenada,

Mr. Desjarlais stautes that Sitting Bull was a very humene chief, a&na that ne
always ordered his mem to spere ihe women anv childrea of their emeamies,

For the p«st twenty years ir. Dgsjarlais has been located on the Red Lake Agency
in Minnescta, where he practices medicine smong his people., Although eighty~five
years of age, he is in the best of health anu remsims in full possession of all
his fsculties. le speaks French fluently, @s well as Sioux, Chippewa, Cree and
other Indian lungueges,

("rack Desjarlais con't,.)
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(W PEANK PALMER, Shistonice 02 e
/ / GwW&iM :

Frank Palmer was bora May 12th, 1847, in the town of Eton, Freble county, Ohio.
At tne age of fourteesn he emlisted in Company B of the Piftyesevenih Volunteer
Infantry. He was wiln the aray of Grant @f Shiloh and with Burnsides at Wurfree-
sboro. Afler the latier battle, he was irapsfewred io the Signal Corps of the
Sigunal Corps of the United Staies Army, auw there completed his three ycars service.
after being discharged from the army at Chattaunooga, Tennessee, he returmed to
Ricamonu, Indiana, @t which plece ne had orighnally eanlisted, anu there he resided
for the next six months. He then started for the gold fields of Idaho, but upon :
arriving in St¢, Paul, he found inat tne government would not permic the expedition
that seascn. IHe then weat to Menkato, Minn., where he remsined until June 1806,
when an expedition was organized by Colonel Thowmas lodumes of Shaxkopee, Miumn., which -
he joined an: proceeded overland o lontana, Thisy expediiion consisied of about
ihree hundred men, wish half as many ox teams aud twelve span of horses, They
ieft Manksto aboul tue Tirst of Jume suc arrived &t PFort Benion late in August,
Bach nmen furnispned ais own ouilit. ir. Pelasr's cousisted of two yoke of oxea,
iwo miich cows and a covered wagon, Jlomded wish provisious. Whea the men reached
Fort Beuton they found Lhal ine greatl rush of ilmalgretion iuto Monleus had usde
work there very scarce while the coust of living was exceedingly anigh. They also
learned through the wwil thet there was a very lurge wheal crop in Mimnnesota
causlng & greel rise in wages, ana conseyuently tne expedition disbanded and most
of the men retwrned to Minuesota.

M, Felawr remained, Lowever, ead ia September, 1666, he entered the employ of
Charles Huntley, who wee then operating @ staege iine from Fert Benton, Monilsna,
to lelena., Mr. Palmer was given charge of ithe station at Tongue River Crossing,
his duty bteing to teke care of the herd of thirgyesix horses, six of which were
kept in readiness for the stage drive:r. After the close o¢f the state roule, Mr.
Paluer entereé the employ of Maleclim Clerk con his raneh iu irxiekly Peaxr Canyon,
where e remained until ithe following May. He then went io¢ ihe lower crossing
of the Sum river, tc take cherge of & stage station for the Wells, Fargo Company.

In July, 1867, Churles A. Buffee of Minmespolis, secured e governwent contract
for & pony express between Cld Fort Abercrombie on the Ked River Lo Fort bemton,
Montena., Wr., Pelwer was placed in charge of the line frowm Fort Benton tc¢ Fort
Buford, @no remsined in this work until March lst, 1868. The plsn of the Ruffee
mail compsny was to heve tewperary caeaps or ststious at intervals of about fifty
miles between Fort Abercrombie and Fort Bentomn. 'Two men were Lo be staticued &t
each camp, whose duty it would be to carry the maeil tc amu from ad joining camps.
Bui this plan did mot prove successful; the men deserted the csmps, or were killed
by the Indisns.. The maeil compeny went into bankruptey, without once having goti
the meil trancferred from one end of the route to the other. Iir. Palmer, Lowever,
continued at his work es supervisor of the western division of the mail route for
almost eight months, his duty being to travel from Fort Benion to Port Buferc, and
to see that the meil cerriere at the ststions along the way sterted prouptly with
the meil bage or schedule time. ZFach men was to huve & single horse, anc the
campe were to be provided with provisions once & month; but as hes been said tae
plan never worked ou: ee origimslly intesded., Culy & few siraggling wmail cerriers
ecouls be meinteined on 21l this western division, while the carriers easst of Fort B
Buford pever succedded ir getting the msil tc that posts In fact, the poctaaster
et Port Abercrombie never sent meil over this route that was due west of Buford,
and the meil received in western Montepe came from the @sst over the Saelt lake
route. The mail carriers from Fort Buford cn the Ruffee route were givem empty
sagke 28 a matter of form. After several mcnths of this fruitless work, ir. Falmer
determined to investigele the matier anmc ou Mareh lst, 1868, startec from Fort Feck
to Port Tottem, the heesdquarters of the Ruffee meil compeny. Upen arriving ihcre
and learning tanat the mail company had gone ianto bsakruptey, ae secured eaployment
as post guide at tne fort, with tne very substantial salary of ome hundred and fifty
dollars per month, His duty now was to act as 8 guide for meil parties (mow acting
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(Frunk Palmer con't,)

unuer the authority of the diffeyent post comaanders), to arraage for campiug
places for the parties, ete. In this work he continued for two years. He nmext
entered the employ of Brenner & Terry, post traders st Fort Toiten. With them
he served as clerk for sevem years, or until 1877. 1I» tnav year he formed a
partnership with John Cramsie, who hed Just beea sppointed Indian trader at the
post. After a few yo rs Ir. Cramsie was appointed Imdian agent, and Mr. Falasr
contipued the business zlone until December, 1907, whem he solu his establishaent

end retired from active husipess life.
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g W EDWARD H. LOHNES, Goopenitown, N. Dake

Edward H., Lohnes, one of the Ramsey county delegation in the North Dakota Consti-
tational Convention, was one of the early pioneers in Dakota Territory. He was born
in the little village of Schaghticak, New York, on April 24th, 1844. His father,
George Lohnes, was a Pennsylvanian of German Descent, and his grandfather h:d serv-
ed in the Revolutionary war. On his mother's side his ancestry was Irish. Vhen
Edward was but an infant his father was accidentalliy killed in « powder mill. Not
loang after his father's death, his mother moved to the town of Valley Falls, and late
er, when the lad was about ten years of age, to Lansingburg. In this latter place
the boy grew to manhood, attending the village school during the winter months and

=-working in a rope factory during his vacations.

Late in the spring of 1862 he went to Albany to enlist in the volunteer service.
From that city he was transferred to New York where he was sworn in and became &
member of Company D in the first regiment of WHew York Mounted Rifles. With this
regiment he served for three years and two months, being present at the siege of
Petersburg and the fall of Richmond. He was discharged, by order, at Urbana, on
the Rappahannock in the summer of 1865. Returning to Valley Falls he worked there in
a powder mill until the spring of 1867. He then enlisted in the regular ammy in
Troy, as & member of the Thirty-first United States Infantry. This company was soon
after sent to Governor's Island, New York, and thence by way of Omaha up the Miss-
ouri river to Fort Stevenson. After a short stay there, the three companies, A D
and K of the Thirty-first Infantry, under command of General A. H. Terry, were
marched acress the plains to the southern shore of Devils Lake, where they were iue
mediately set to work constructing the temporary buildings on Fort Totten. Mr. Lohnes
remained with his company at Fort Totten until 1869, when it was removed to Fort Rice.
Here the Thirty-first Infantry was consoldiated with the Twenty-second United States
Infantry, and it was as a sergeant of the Twenty-second United States Infantry that
Mr. Lohnes was discharged in April, 1870. At this time, the commander at Fort Rice
was Colonel Elwell Stephen Otis of the Twenty-second Infantry, later Gemeral Otis,

— commander of the United States army and Military Governor of the Phillippine Islands.

Upon being discharged, Mr. lLohnes returned to Fort Totten and not leng after he
began carrying the mail between that post and Sibley's Croesing on the Sheyenne
River. For this work he used a temm of ponies in the summer and as a rule, a dog
sleigh in the winter time. He much preferred the dogs for once drivém over a road
they would never leave it. Thedogs were also easier to care for, each being fed
only a pound of pemmican every evening. The sleigh used was very like the ordinary
toboggan about two feet in width and about ten feet long; it was drawn by four dogs.
After following this route for two years, Mr. Lohnes was transferred to the Jamestown
route and continued the work there for eight years. After leaving the mail service,
Mr. Lohnes was wood contractor and beef contractor at Fort Totien for several years.
In the spring of 1882, he took land near Sweetwater Lake in Ramsey county and farm-
ed there extensively until 1904 when he removed to a farm near Crary.

Mr. Lohnes served as county commissioner in Ramsey from 1883 to 1889. He was
then chosen as a delegate to the State Constitutional Convention. After North Dak-
ota was admitted to statehood he served in the lower house of the State Legislature.
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. Feom P 1272« Folmplis M«w of ¥Wlmesota,
Josoch Nichelas Wigollstywas born in IT90 ‘ina amsll town in Savov, in the ertrems
novtivest of TEEAEE Toaly{ nesr the bordar of Yranee ) 4t the ase of ton he was
aopreniticed bo a wabchmakorywith mhm he sewwond oignd years)hovevar Freneh
suoyeioradias state that he 7id nobhing ba’ herd cows £i1l he was twelwe,vhen he
‘lﬁgwma %0 road and was g ent o sehoollt few vears ware Syonh in e canibol of
his provindeyvhere e suv-orbed hisself by vatchaabing whiie enpaged in cludy.

fio won & mathamahical vrize of Sove 1.porbancestnen returned to his native village

& . where be uumpt pathasstics exd siudisd Labin aud other lanrmages, taglish being
k. 1 sobshly one of thems L ter we find him n Pardsyfirst a student in snthe Beplo

-

Hormale ?.;33’:;. not lohg aftew an dnstructor in uhe Oollegs Lo 1lg-le~Orando«dis finte
gubliestionymhich ammerred in WTyres o the mathamatics of 1ife ingursnce It brought
Wi dntometice and grered he deora of se@leby.ie next wurmed his attention ‘o
wtmuw:;n wdrh ha so-n dlstinmuishod himselfghe w-8 employed im Jme~rbtant
| nvestigations,advance to a professorsiip, and dacovater L7 the medgl.of Lhe
. R 2 .m Of'“cnor'.hbwt the vesr 1870 thls eareer of rro-rverty and distinctior was
; | m m.m slended bioraphieal materials availgble Indicate that Nieollet,
; m Ras boen successiul ‘o a flnamcia) wgy and had saved ap & little rnrtuua;ent*.d
uvon eorbaln speeulstive entormrimes in vhich not omly lost his 21 but involwed his 4
friends as well.Tils disgster did mot invelve his homesty in the Teashs Towever fj
he was bitterly rerwoached by those who had been his fedends Stung by tholr mﬂlmtq
- h 'Mdmly abandonad a1l his engomgensents.btured his bagk on Farls and sglled for Now
> m 4n the year 1832. : |
Tn 1833 ko seeured wap Jdevartment lobters to cowanding offlcers and Inddisn mta‘
_,;-n&nwmzxmmmm bo astronomicsl instrunents to be used im &
W axplorationfhis mwroject wos delayed blmos yeurd for some vnknma YeasoR.
:‘hﬂwﬁbﬂiﬁm sumer o7 1936 that he serdved st Fort Snellingvhers his Mﬂ;
mmm & weloome gussh.fies pant Wlo fall cxploving the upper Mesimeiprd
-wmmgm tmzmv'm hmmm«g-ﬁm '
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" Moo M: aa W rveyor and explorew for the next bres yaare in making m exmadngh.

-

of the upper Northwest between the iissourd,levils Lake and ihe Yisslsoip-dswith Lea
dohn O.Fremont as his assistant.
Mioolleh we samioy mnd in charge of Lhe ravty of Frrveyor-wxrigreps he
morored a pleasic report on hio findings vhieh was weimbed in Senaie docwhent 238,
The acooumaning wam =38 the sariias and *’cs‘t mmm'ate map of the Harlbwest ur ig

that time, bub Phe anthors heslth wee failing h:ﬂ did net eolplete the vopk, he disd
in Sevbeaber I8 73

Theparty of -mlcrmra a8 Uher lefl é»‘ort e e South Dakota conglatedef
ninteen vecple, Lhirty three horses and ten eatts , T addition to Feollet and :
romonts theve wowa Swo half breed suids, 1114isw Dixom,awd louison Frenier; a Mo Mgy am!2
a Wa8 Trom Membina emroub homey Mp Geyorsboh.nist amd a Captain Belligny, a Prench
of ficey who accompanded us 4o ses the cm:mﬁry,thé obhere wome ;m drivers,; hmions or

M yagre the Nicollet-Fremont narty exrlored the 'orthwest,reestablishing

landuarks, correctin ¢ maps and apcumlubing a mas of information about geology
botdnyand neturel history,he troveled thous.nds of miles vith small parbies in the
Tadian eountry with 1ittle Triction. Fis revorts wewe 1nmnhta when he died bub
thgupmdpartafthebutmmhmm .A gopy of the originals are in the hands of

nmmm




